I‘Il.lr'docl(F-7-62 ~Lawson Farmstead; "The Locust" Ca. 1825-ca. 1930
Urbana vicinity
Private

The Murdock-Lawson Farmstead is centered on a circa 1825 hrick dwelling
with a side hall plan and a one-story porch, with a one-story addition on the
northwest corner. Other buildings in the farmstead are a frame smokehouse, a
privy, a garage, a saw mill, a wagon shed/corn crib, a blacksmith shop, a
tractor shed, a hog barn, and a bank barn with milk house. The outbuildings
date from the period about 1875-1930. The farmstead is moderately significant
in architecture and agriculture for the vermacular Federal style of the
dwelling and the variety of outbuildings illustrating the various functions of
the late 19th and early 20th century farm. The saw mill is an unusual
camponent in the farmstead; although many portable steam saw mills were in
operation from about 1875 to the mid-20th century, few have survived in
farmstead building groups. The farm was established about 1825 by Benjamin or
Richard B. Murdock and the dwelling dates from about this period. By 1890, the
Murdock family sold the farm to William P. N. Lawson, in whose family the
property remained until the mid-1980's. "The Locust" is said to have been the
name the Murdock family used in connection with the farm.
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Murdock-Lawson Farmstead
Urbana

Frederick County

HISTORTC QONTEXT':

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

chronological /Development Period:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition, A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial /Urban Dominance, A.D. 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes:
Agriculture
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Cowmmity Planning
Econamic (Industrial)
Resource Type:
Category: Building
Historic Enviromment: Rural
Historic Function & Use:
Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Damestic/secondary structure/smokehouse

Agriculture/subsistence/animal facility/barn

Agr@wlulre/sabsisterne/storage/granary
Agriculture/subsistence/agricultural outbuilding/tool shed
Industry/Processing/Extraction/manufacturing facility/mill

Known Design Source: None
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1. Name (indicate preferred name)
historic Murdock-Lawson Farmstead (preferred); "The Locust"
and/or common
2. Location
street & number 2914 Roderick Road ____not for publication
clty, town Urbana _X__ vicinity of congressional district  6th
state Maryland county Frederick
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____ district —_ public _X _occupied ____ agriculture —___ museum
X__ bullding(s) x private —___unoccupied —___commercial —__park
_— structure — both _ work in progress —_ educational X __ private residence
—__site Public Acquisition Accessible —_entertainment — religious
—~ __ object ___inprocess X _vyes: restricted —___ government ____ scientific
— being considered ___yes: unrestricted ____industrial —_ transportation
_X not applicable __  po ____military ___other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

Field Farms Limited Partnership, et al

name
street & number 1 N. Summit Avenue telephone no.:
city, town Gaithersburg state and zip code Md. 20877

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber 1341
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio 607
city, town Frederick state MD 21701

6. Representation in Existing nmistorical surveys

title

date - _federal ____state __ county ___ local

«eposltory for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. F-7-62

Condition Check one Check one

___excellent ___ deteriorated ____ unaltered _% original site

_X good ____ruins _* altered ___moved date of move
— fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

QONTRIBUTING RESOURCE COUNT: 10

The Murdock-Lawson Farmstead or "The Locust" is an originally agricultural
complex now principally a private residence centered on a two-story hrick dwelling
built about 1825 and its assoclated damestic and agricultural outhuildings, most of
which date from the period about 1890-1930. The outbuildings include a frame and
stone bank barn, a wagon shed/corn crib, a smokehouse, a saw mill, a blacksmith
shop, anrd a hog barn. The farmstead is located on the west side of Roderick Road
about two miles west of Urbana, Frederick County, Maryland. The huildings are set
back from the road about 150 yards and the house faces east, with the outbuildings
located north of the dwelling. The dates of the structures are based on
architectural evidence and land records.

The dwelling is a two-story brick building with a three-bay east elevation laid
in flemish bond. The entrance is in the south bay and a one-story porch with turned
columns, a scroll-sawn frieze, and hrackets shelters the first story. The cornice
is corbeled and the roof is covered with standing seam metal. An interiar end
chimmey is at the north gable end. The windows are 6/6 with gauged arches and
louvred shutters. The doorway has a 4-light transam and a 6-panel door with glazed
upper panels. The west elevation also has three bays with an off-set window in the
south bay which lights the interior stair landing. Below this window, on the firs*
story is a repointed area of different color brick surrounding a small 1/1 windc
showing that an original doorway opening fram the rear of the side hall was
altered. The gauged arch over the former doorway is still in place above the modern
window. At the northwest corner of the house is a one-story frame kitchen addition
with an enclosed porch on the north elevation. The addition has german siding. A
stone foundation partially visible on the west elevation suggests that the present
shed-roofed addition may replace an original side wing of one or 1-1/2 stories of
undetermined plan. Both thenortharxisarthgableerﬂshavemcpemngsexoepta
single off-center attic window. The interior retains some door and window trim, but
was not accessible for more camplete documentation.

Domestic outbuildings:

Smokehouse: The frame smokehouse has a stone foundation and board and batten siding
and an overshot gable roof covered with corrugated metal. Under the extended gable
is a vertical beaded board door on the east elevation. The gable is faced with
german siding. The smokehouse appears to date from about 1875, although an interior
examination may reveal earlier features, such as log structure.

Garage: The circa 1920 garage located immediately north of the smokehouse has
concrete block walls and a shed corrugated metal roof. 1Twin sets of sliding,
cross-braced doors are on the east elevation.

Privy: Behind the smokehouse is a small frame privy with a corrugated metal roof
and vertical board siding. It probably dates fram about 1900-1915.



8. Significance Survey No. F-7-62

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ___ conservation —_law ____science
— 1500-1599 __X_agriculture —_ economics —_ literature — sculpture
—_1600-1699 _ x_architecture __ education —— military — social/
—_1700-1799 ___ art —__engineering — music humanitarian
—* 1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater
—X 1900- —_ communications X__industry —— politics/government  ___ transportation
___ invention —_ other (specify)

Specific dates C. 1825 - C. 1930  gyijlder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: XA _ B xC _ D

and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A _ B _C _ D _E _F G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Murdock-Lawson Farmstead is moderately significant in architecture and
agriculture, the dwelling illustrating the vernacular Federal style of the
mid-1820's and the extensive outhuilding group having representative exanples of a
wide variety of agricultural and damestic functions from the last quarter of the
19th century to about 1930. The presence of a saw mill in farmsteads was cammon in
the late 19th and early 20th centuries after portable steam saw mill equipment
became common, but few of these have survived. The machinery in the Murdock-Lawson

unchanged. The bank barn, hog barn, wagon shed/corn crib, tractor shed, and

- blacksmith shop further exemplify the needs and activities of the farm. The bank
Jarn has the typical concrete block enclosure of the stalls showing the conversion
from grain as the principal product to dairying in the early 20th century.

The house was possibly built by Richard B. Murdock or his father Benjamin
Murdock about 1825. It was certainly built by 1834, when Benjamin's last will and
testament devised to Richard "the farm on which he now lives, to contain 379
acres." The Murdock descendants retained the farm until 1890 when an equity sale
took place and the farm was sold to William P. N. Lawson (1836-1911), who then sold
it to James U. Lawson (1830-1897) . His son Gabriel U. Lawson (1868-1940) received
the farm in 1910 in a second equity sale. The advertisement in 1910 described the
farm as follows:

"This farm (121 acres, 18 square perches) is improved by a substantial krick and
frame dwelling house containing 9 roams, and a good bank barn, wagon shed, and
necessary outbuildings. This farm is well supplied with water both at the house and
in the fields, and is under good fencing. Mr. Gabriel U. Lawson residing on the
premises . . ."

According to Mr. Marion Iawson, the son of Gabriel, the farm was called "The Iocust"
by the Murdock family, but no other reference to a name has been discovered. The
Lawsons retained the property until the mid-1980's.
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10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property 10 acres
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Quadrangle name Buckeystown, Md.-Va.
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Verbal boundary description and justification

Approximately 10 acres centered on the dwelling on Tax Map 96, Parcel 55.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county

code

state code county

code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. date

November 1993

street & number

12 E. Church Street telephone

696-2958

city or town Frederick state

MD 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated

Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.
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Murdock-Lawson Farmstead Survey No. F-7-62
Frederick County

7.1 Description (Continued)

Agricultural outbuildings:

Wagon shed/corn crib: The frame wagon shed/corn crib has vertical siding and
slidingdoorsonboththeeastarﬂwwtcemn:alopenings. The cribs have
horizontal siding on the north and south sides and stone piers. The gable roof
is corrugated metal. A shed addition on the north side also has a set of
sliding doors. The wagon shed was probably built about 1890.

Saw mill: The saw mill, which operated from at least the 1920's until the
1970's, is a long open shed located west of the wagon shed. A corrugated metal
roof covers the shed,whichhasapartiallyenclosedsectionattheeastend,
while the west end is open on all sides. The steam—powered mill equipment has
been removed to a nearby farm and the structure is currently a recreational
building.

Blacksmith shop: The frame building probably built as a blacksmith in about
1890-1900 is located adjacent to the wagon shed/carn crib, the westernmost
building in a row leading eastward to the bank barn. The exterior is covered
with board and batten siding on the east end of the rectangular building and
vertical boards on the west end. A sliding door opens to the west end on the
south elevation. The roof is corrugated metal. The interior has a concrete
block chimney which is brick above the roof, located at the east end.

Tractor shed. The frame building east of the blacksmith shop appears to have
been built as an all-purpose shed for wagons and/or small tractors. Now
deteriorated to the point of sagging toward the west, the building has vertical
board siding and a corrugated metal roof. The south elevation is open. The
building probably dates fram about 1900~1910.

Hog barn: ’Iheknildingwhichappearstobeahogbamislocatedjustvmtof
thebarﬂcbamaniisljm(edtoitbyacoveredareafrcmitseastgableeni.
The building has vertical sidinganidul:chdoorsonthesouthelevationopening
to a feeding aisle across the south side. Concrete piers support the building
on the northside,whereaslopefallsawaytoaformerfarmlandnmﬁ.ngfran
the barnyard to the western agricultural fields of the farm. The hog barn was
probably built in the early 1920's, but could be an enlargement of an earlier
shed.

Bank barn: The frame bank barn was probably built about 1890-1900 and has
tongue-and-groove siding with louvred arched vents and a stone foundation.
German siding encloses the stall level on the north elevation and a concrete
block enclosure near the northeast corner farms the milking parlor. The roof
is standing seam metal over wood shingles. Three louvred cupolas are on the
ridge. A concrete block milk house built about 1920 stands near the east end.
It has astandingseamgableroofanigeman—sidedgableswiﬂlslssashinthe
walls. A non-contributing concrete block silo is located on the east side of
the ramp on the south elevation of the barn.
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